BYLAWS

OF

INTERNET SOFTWARE CONSORTIUM

Internet Stefenare Consort 950 Charter Street Redwood City, CA 54063

BYLAWS

OF INTERNET SOFTWARE CONSORTIUM a California nontrofit corporation

ARTICLE I: OFFICES, REGISTERED AGENT

- 1.1 Offices. The principal office of this Corporation shall be located in offices, either within or without the State of California. The corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the State of California, as the Board of Directors may determine or as the affeits of the corporation may require from time to time.
- 1.2 Registered Agent. The corporation shall have end continuously maintain in the State of Childronia registered office and a registered agent whose office is identical with such registered office. The registered differ may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office is the State of California, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to the by the Start of Directors.

ARTICLE II: PURPOSES

The primary objectives and purposes of this corporation shall be:

- To support the development of freely-available computer software programs which implement core laternet protocols and standards; and
- (ii) To participate in any other such activities in furtherance of the general purposes of the corporation, as determined by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE III: BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

- 3.1 General Powers. The affairs, activities and property of the corporation shall be managed, directed and controlled by and its power exercised by and vested in the Board of Directors. Directors need not be residents of the State of California.
- 3.2 Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of directors shall be not less than two nor more than fifteen, and the exact number of directors shall be fixed by approval of the Beard of Directors. Each director shall hold office for a term of one year and until his or her successor is elected and duly qualified.

3.3 Election of Directors. Initial Directors of the corporation shall be elected by the incorporator or Incorporators of the corporation. Thereafter, Directors shall be designated to serve on the Board of Directors by the vote of a majority of the Directors then serving on the Board, or by selection of the sole remaining Director.

- 3.4 Regular Meetings on the storage of the Board of Directors shall be held without other orice than this bylaw. The Board of Directors may provide by resolution the time and place, either within or without the State of California, for the holding of additional results need the Board of Directors may
- resolution.

 3.5 Special Meetings, Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the Chairpenson of the Board, the President, any Vice President, the Secretary, or any two Directors. The person or persons activatives to call
- be called by or at the request of the Champerson or the Bodyard, the President, Bay Yace President, the Secretary, or any two Directors. The person or persons astroburzed to end special meetings of the Board may fix any place, either within or without the State of California, as a place for holding envy special meeting of the Board called by them.

 3.6 Telephone Meetings. Directors may ourdiness at meetine
- through use of conference halpshoon, electronic video recess communication or similar communications operations, so long as all of the following apply (1), each member purificapism in the meeting can communicate with all the other perceivage constructions and (0) each member is provided the means of perceivages and matters before the contract of th
- 3.7 Notice. Notice of my openial meeting of the Bound of Discretors shall be held upon four (6) days strone by the class small ost 40 ms notice delivered personally or by belgotone, including a voice messaging system or other system or stendology designed to rote and not communicate messages, telesgraph, inclinally, electronic mail or other clottonic means, to each Dismost or fair or ber address shown on the receded of the corporation. Regular meetings shall be held upon institute content is required for each meetings. If mailed, such notice shall be desented delivered when depotent as in twice dataset mail and destinated when the content is required for each meetings. If mailed, such notice shall be desented delivered when depotents as in twice dataset mail to distinct on the collegate for the content of the content of the collegate on the collegate in delivered to the telegate company. Any Disente may waite extent of any meetine. The standards or all Director start presents or support of the collegate on the collegate in delivered to the telegate content.

of such meeting, except where a Directive stands a meeting with the supress purpose of operating to the transaction become for meeting in not having collecting concerned. Neither the business to be transacted at; nor the purposes of, say regular or special meeting of the Board need to specififf in the foot or valuer or borde of such meeting, unless specifically required by law or by these bylases. All walvers, consents and approvals shall be filled with the corroman remote for earths a result of the artistics of the meeting.

- 3.8 Querum. A majority of the Board of Directors shall continue a quomation for this termsuscient of business as any meeting of the Board, but if less than a majority of the Directors are greened at evel meeting, a majority of the Directors are greened at evel meeting, a majority of the Directors present any adjourn the meeting from time to the revident further order. If the meeting is adjusted from the other evident further order. If the meeting is adjusted from prior to the direct of the adjournment to another time or place of the adjournment is made to the Directors. Who were not received in the time of the adjournment is made to the Directors. Who were not received in the time of the adjournment.
- 3.9 Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the Board of Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number of Directors is required by law or by these hylaws.
- 3.10 Vacatories. Any vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors and any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of Directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the centaining Directors, though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors, or by a sole remaining Directors. A Director elected to fill a vession's while the elected for the unstanted term of his or he: remedesser in office.
- 3.11 Compansation. Directors as such shall not receive any stated salaries for their periods, but by a reconition of the Beard of Directors. Index sum and expenses of attendance, if my, may be allowed for stendance at each regular or special meeting of the Board but tooking contined hearin falls be construct to preside say Durector from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation truesfor.
- 3.12 Action by the Board of Directory Wildows's Martine, Any action required all we be to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Director, can go sizedo which may be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, may be taken without a meeting of the Board of Directors, may be taken without a meeting of a consense it awings agreeting from the actions on bacine in signedy of all of the Directors. The written consent face all the first with the manuface of the proceedings of the content of the processed of the content of the processed of the content of the co

3.13 Liability of Directors. Except as provided in Section 5233 of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law, a person who performs the duties of a director in accordance with Section 5231(a) and (b) of the California Nonprofit Corporation Law shall have no liability based on any alleged failure to discharge that person's obligations as a director, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any actions or omissions which exceed or defeat a public or charitable purpose to which the corporation or assets held by it, are dedicated.

President/Executive Director or Chairperson of the Board or both, one or more Vice Presidents, a Secretary, a Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer and such other officers as may be elected in accordance with the provisions of this Article. The Board of Directors may elect or appoint such other officers, including one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistance Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except neither the Secretary no the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer may serve concurrently as the President or

ARTICLE IV: OFFICERS Officers. The officers of this corporation shall be a

Chairperson of the Board. 4.2 Election and Term of Office. The officers of the corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors. New offices may be created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until his or her successor has been elected and

4.3 Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by delivering a written notice to the Secretary of the Corporation, or to the Chairperson of the Board.

duly qualified.

The acceptance of such resignation by the Board of Directors, unless required by the Removal. Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best

terms thereof, shall not be necessary to make the same effective.

interests of the corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without presudice to the contract rights, if any of the officer so removed.

Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation,

removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired term.

4.6 Chairperson of the Board. The Chairperson of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors of the corporation, and shall have such other powers and duties not inconsistent with these bylaws as may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board. In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the

President of the corporation shall preside at meetings of the Board.

4.7 President/Executive Director. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the corporation and shall supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the corporation. The President may also use the designation "Executive Director." The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. The

anars or to the expectation. The President and sub-to-tied the Board of Directors. The Directors," The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. The President may sign, with the Scarelary or any other proper officer of the ecoporation surforcized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, morages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of by these bylaws or by statute to some other officer or agent of the ecoporation; and in general the President shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be mescribed by the Board from time to time.

Vice President. In the absence of the President or in the event of the

inability or refusal to act, the Vice President (or in the event there shall be more than one Vice President, the Vice Presidents in the coder of their elections, shall perform the detice of the President, and when so acting, shall have all of the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. Any Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to such Vice President by the President or by the Board.

4.9 Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer: If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer shall give a boad for the faithful sicharge of his or her duties in such sum and with such surgery or surgices as the Board

4.9 Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer. If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his one fer duties in such sum and with such survey or surveives as the Board shall determine. He or she shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the corporation; receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the corporation is not hanks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be salected in accordance with the provisions of Arrele V of these bylaws, and in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned or him or her by the President or by the Board.

A.10 Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws or as required by law; be custodiate of the corporate records and east of the corporation and see that, when required which shall be furnished to the Secretary by each Board member; and in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the Secretary by the President or by the Board of Directors. 4.11 Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries. If required by the Board of Directors, the Assistant Treasurers shall give bonds for the faithful discharge of their duties in such sums and with such sureties as the Board shall determine. The Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries, in general, shall perform such duties as

shall be assigned to them by the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer or the Secretary or by

4.12 Records. Officers of the corporation shall make available for inspection at reasonable times to the Board of Directors all official records of the corporation for which they are responsible. Upon leaving office, each officer shall turn over to his or her successor in good order such moneys, books records, documents and other property of the corporation as have been in his or her custody during his or her term

by law, the seal of the corporation is affixed to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the corporation under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws; keep a register of the post office address of the Board member

of office.

the President or the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE V. COMMITTEES 5.1 Committees of Directors. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office, may designate and appoint one or more committees, each of which shall consist of two or more Directors, which committees, to the extent provided in said resolution, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board in the management of the corporation, except that no such committee shall have the authority of the Board in reference to amending, altering, or repealing the bylaws;

electing, appointing or removing any members of such committee or any Director or officer of the corporation; amending the articles of incorporation; restating articles of incorporation; adopting a plan or merger or adopting a plan of consolidation with another

corporation; authorizing the sale, lease, exchange or mortgage of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the corporation; authorizing the voluntary dissolution of the corporation or revoking proceedings therefor, adopting a plan for the distribution of assets of the corporation; or amending, altering or repealing any resolution of the Board which by its terms provided that it shall not be amended, altered or repealed by such committee. The designation and appointment of any such committee and the delegation

thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors or any individual Director of any responsibility imposed upon it or such Director by law.

- 5.2 Other Committees. Other committees not having and exercising the authority of the Board in the management of the corporation may be appointed in such manner as may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Term of Office. Each member of a committee shall continue as such until the next annual meeting of the Board and until his or her successor is elected and duly qualified, unless the existence of the committee shall be sooner terminated, or unless such member be removed from such committee, or unless such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof.
- 5.4 Chairperson. One member of each committee shall be appointed chairperson by the person or persons authorized to appoint the members thereof. Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original
- appointments. 5.6 Quorum. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a
- quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.
- Rules. Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with these bylaws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

 - ARTICLE VI: CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS AND FUNDS
- 6.1 Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents of the corporation, in addition to officers so authorized by these
- bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to
- specific instances.
- 6.2 Checks, Drafts, etc.. All checks, drafts or orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of the corporation.
- shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board of Directors, such instruments shall be

signed by the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer or an Assistant Treasurer and countersigned by the President or a Vice President of the corporation.

- 6.3 Deposits. All funds of this corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the corporation in such banks, crust companies or other depositories as the Board may select.
- 6.4 Gifts. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the corporation any contribution, gift bequest or devise for the general purposes or for any special curpose of the corporation.

ARTICLE VII: BOOKS AND RECORDS

Maintenance of Corporate Records. The corporation shall keep

- courset and complete books and records of account and shall also keep minimate of the proceedings of the Board of Discotors and commissions having any of the authority of the Board of Directors. The financial records and all other compress records, and the minimate of all meetings of the Board of Discotors and all other compress records, and the minimate has been also also been also been also all other compress on the surface of the compression shall be kept at the principal office of the congruntion and shall be open to inspection upon real or within request of any Director.
 - 7.2 Directors' Inspection Rights. Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect and copy all books, records and documents of every kind and to inspect the physical properties of the corporation.
 - 7.3 Annual Raport. The board shall cause an annual report to be foundable not later than one brunderd and twenty (120) days after the close of the corporation's fiscal year to all directors of the corporation and, if the corporation has members, to any member who requests it is writing, which report shall constain the following information in appropriate detail:
 - (i) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the corporation as at the end of the fiscal year.
- $\mbox{(ii)} \qquad \mbox{The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during the fiscal year;} \label{eq:continuous}$
- (iii) The revenue or receipts of the corporation, both unrestricted and restricted to particular purposes, for the fiscal year;
- (iv) The expenses or disbursaments of the corporation, for both general and restricted purposes, during the fiscal year;
 - (v) Any information required by section 8 of this Article.

The annual report shall be accompanied by any report thereon of independent accounts, or, if there is no such report, the certificate of an authorized officer of the corporation that such statements were prepared without audit and from the books and records of the composition.

ARTICLE VIII. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF SPECIFIC TRANSACTIONS TO MEMBERS

This corporation shall mail or deliver to all directors and say and all members within one hundred and twenty (120) days of the close of the fiscal year, a statement which briefly describes the amount and circumstances of any indemnification or transaction in which the corporation, or its parent or subsidiary, was a party, and in which either of the following had a direct or indirect material financial interest:

 (A) Any director or officer of the corporation, or its parent or subsidiary (a mere common directorship shall not be considered a material financial interest); or

 $\mbox{(B)} \quad \mbox{Any holder or more than 10% of the voting power of the corporation, its parent or subsidiary.}$

The slove statement and only be provided with respect to a transmission during the provious fluid up to involving more than 10% The Control Delant ASSO,000 or which was one of a tember of measurement with the same persons troviving, in the aggregate, more than Fifty Thomas Delant (\$50,000) is Similarly, the statement used only be provided with respect to informalization or obviously aggregating, more than Tan Thomas Delant (\$50,000) is Similarly, the statement used only be provided with respect to informalization are obviously aggregating, more than Tan Thomas Delant (\$50,000) of during the persons in all seven only advisors or offices, respect than 100 and 100

Any statement required by this section shall state the names of the interested persons involved in such transactions, stating each person's relationship to the corporation, the nature of such person's interest in the transaction, and where practical, the amount of such interest, provided that in the case of a transaction with a perturning of which such present is a nature, only the interest of the arthrective lines the state.

If this corporation has any members and provides all members with an annual report amounting to the provisions of Article VII of these bylaws, then such annual report shall include the information recoimed by this Article.

The corporation's fiscal year shall determined by resolution of the Board of Directors of the corporation at a meeting duly noticed and held in accordance with these bulsays.

ARTICLE X: WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the State of California's acceptable laws or under the provisions of the articles of incorporation or of the bytawn of this expression. It is under the provision of the articles of incorporation, or white thereof in which gaingred by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, stall be deemed contribute to to also notice.

ARTICLE XI: INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

- 11.1 Right of Indermity.
- On To the extent that a person who is, or was, a dimens, officer, employee or other agent of this corporation has been encorrectly on the marine in defrase of any cavil, criminal, administrative or investigative proceeding beought to proceen a judgment against send person by pressor to first that to or this; or was, an agencal of the description of the contract of
- (ii) If such person either scelles any such claims or sustains a judgment against him or the, then intermeditation against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts reasonably incurred in connection with such proceeding while the provided by the corporation but only to the extens allowed by, and in accordance with, Section 5238 of the California Normoff Public Benefit Cornectation Law.
- (iii) Nothing contained in this bylaw shall affect any right to indemnification to which persons other than directors and officers may be entitled by contract or otherwise.
- 11.2. Approval of Informatiy Any informatication under this Section thail be made by the corporation only if submodule in the projectic case; you and externization to the information of the agent is proper in the circumstance because the agent has not the agent in proper in the circumstance because the gent has not the applicable behavior connects and profession 52:1850; and of of the California consistency of the applicable case of the property of the circumstance because the agent and the Board of Directors consisting of discussion with a supplicity work of approximation for the Board of Directors consisting of discussion with our supplication of the property of the consistency of the control of the consistency of the co

11.3 Advancement of Expenses. Expenses incurred in defeculing any proceedings may be advanced by the corporation prior to the final disposition of such proceeding upon receipt of any understating by on to bohalf of the agent to treaty such amount unless it shall be determined ultimately that the agent is entitled to be indetunified as supported in Section 9238 of the California Norporti Corporation Law.

ADTICLE YOU AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

These bylaws may be altered, amended or receased and naw bylaws may be adopted by a unjority of the directors present at any regular or special meeting of the Board.

AUTICLE XIII: AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

- 13.1 Amendment of Articles Before Admission of Members. Before any members have been admirted to the corporation, any amendment of the Articles of Improporation may be adopted by the amoroval of the Board of Directors.
- 13.2 Amendment of Articles After Admission of Members. After members, if any, have been admitted to the corporation, aneadment of the Articles of Incorporation may be adopted by the approval of the Board of Directors and by the approval of the members of the corporation.
- 1.3.5 Certain Amendments. Now inhutanting the above services of this Actioch, the corporation shall not amend its Actioch of Incorporation to that may statement which appears in the original Articles of Incorporation of the annex and address of the first discussor of this corporation, nor the names and address of the first discussor of this corporation, nor the names and address of its initial agent, except to extrem a new for its rath statement or to delice reals statement either the properties of the statement of the delice and the statement of the statement

ARTICLE XIV: PROHIBITION AGAINST SHARING CORPORATE PROFITS AND ASSETS

No nearther, director, officer, employee or other person consected with this comprosition, or only press individuals, all missons in similar days. The more is any time any office the enterenting or possible proposition than four president parameter to any extension of the compression to provide the pression of the proposition. All calculation if any of the compression shall defined to be use expression.

corporation, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, the assets of the corporation, after all debts have been satisfied, shall be distributed as required by the Articles of Incorporation of

this corporation and not otherwise.

ARTICLE XV: MEMBERS

15.1 No Members. This corporation shall have no members.

15.2. Approval of Board of Directors. Pateuart to Section 5310(b) of the Nonprofix Public Benefit Coppression Law of the State of California, any action which would otherwise, under law or the provisions of the Ancidee of Incorporation or Bylaws of this corporation, require approval of the majority of all members or approval by the members, skill only require the approval of the Board of Directors.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I hereby certify that I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of finternet Software Consections, a California soapprofit corporation, and that the foregoing bylaws constitute the Splaws of staid cooperation as duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the corporation on November 11, 1997.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of this corporation as of this 12th day of November, 1997.

ul Vivia Secretory

BYLAWS OF INTERNET SOFTWARE CONSORTIUM INDEX

ARTICLE L' OFFICES, REGISTERED AGENT			
1.1	Offices	ŝ	
1.2	Registered Agent	÷	
ARTICLE II: PURPOSES1			
RTICLE III: BOARD OF DIRECTORS			
3.1	General Powers	2	
3.2	Number, Tenure and Qualifications	,	
3.3	Election of Directors	Š	
3.4	Regular Meetings	î	
3.5	Special Meetings	,	
3.6	Telephonic Meetings	ì	
3.7	Notice	Š	
3.8	Quorem	i	
3.9	Manner of Acting	;	
3.10	Vacancies	ă	
3.11	Compensation	ċ	
3.12	Action by the Board of Directors Without a Meeting	ć	
3.13	Liability of Directors.	ċ	
RTICLE IV: OFFICERS5			
4.1	Officers	¢	
4.2	Election and Term of Office	τ	
4.3	Resignation	ί	
4.4	Removal	í	
4.5	Vacancies	į	
4.6	Chairperson of the Board		
4.7	President/Executive Director	1	
4.8			
4.9	Treasurer/Chief Pinancial Officer	:	
4.10			
4.11	Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretagies		
4.12	Records	:	
RTICLE V: COMMITTEES5			

A

5.2 Other Committees

BYLAWS OF INTERNET SOFTWARE CONSORTIUM THINKY

(continued)

Page	
ARTICLE XIV: PROHIBITION AGAINST SHARING CORPORATE PROFITS AND ASSETS	
ARTICLE XV: MEMBERS	
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY12	